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exhibitor, as that term is used in the Act and the Regulations, or acted for or was employed by an 

exhibitor (respondent Tri-State), and his acts, omissions or failures within the scope of his 

employment or office are, pursuant to section 2139 of the Act (7 U.S.C. § 2139), deemed to be 

his own acts, omissions, or failures, as well as the acts, omissions, or failures of respondent 

Tri-State. 

   BASIS FOR TERMINATION 

3. The AWA is a remedial statute enacted to “insure that animals . . . are provided

humane care and treatment.”  Section 2.12 of the Regulations, through the bases enumerated in 

section 2.11, authorizes the Department to terminate any license issued to a person who: 

“Has...been found to have violated any Federal, State, or local laws or regulations 
pertaining to the transportation, ownership, neglect or welfare of animals, or is otherwise 
unfit to be licensed and the Administrator determines that the issuance of a license would 
be contrary to the purposes of the Act.”  9 C.F.R. § 2.11(a)(7). 

4. Respondents have been found to have violated the Endangered Species Act

(ESA), a federal law pertaining to the ownership and welfare of animals.  PETA v. Tri-State 

Zoological Park of W. Maryland, Inc., 424 F. Supp. 3d 404 (D. Md. 2019), aff'd, 843 F. App'x 

493 (4th Cir. 2021), cert. denied sub nom, Tri State Zoological Park of W. Maryland, Inc. v. 

PETA, 141 S. Ct. 2854 (2021).  Specifically, the district court found that the respondents, inter 

alia, (1) maintained their animals in “fetid and dystopic conditions” where “filth and feces 

dominate;” (2) “never provided adequate veterinary care to its lemurs, tigers, and lions;” and (3) 

abdicated their responsibility to provide animals preventative or palliative care.”  Id. at 413.  

The court declared that respondents violated the ESA by unlawfully taking nine federally 

protected animals, and permanently enjoined the respondents from owning or possessing any 

endangered or threatened species and terminated their ownership and possessory rights in the 








